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NJEDGE.NET, INC.
As Lead Agency for the New Jersey Department of Community Affairs approved
EdgeMarket Cooperative Pricing System #269EMCPS


Request for Proposals for 
Integrated Higher Education ERP (Enterprise Resource Planning System)      

Bid No. 269EMCPS-19-002 
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Corrections/Additions

[bookmark: _Toc516769136][bookmark: _Toc517010188][bookmark: _Toc529234990]Section 4.1 (7) Bid Submission Requirements requires that the bid submission be notarized; however a bid notarization form is missing. Please use the amended Exhibit K (attached) to the package to correct this omission. Section 4.1 (7)
7. The proposal must be fully and properly executed by an authorized person, and the authorized person’s signature must be notarized using Exhibit K.  By signing, you certify (i) your express authority to sign on behalf of yourself, your company, or other entity; (ii) your full knowledge and acceptance of this RFP, and (iii) that all information provided is complete, true and accurate.   By signing you further affirm that you understand and agree to comply with the procedures on permissible contacts relating to this procurement.



Questions Received

The following additional questions were received by NJEdge:
Exhibit K:
1. Are we supposed to use this in the context of only the sample institution provided?
Response: Yes, use the sample institution as your basis for costs.
2. Is this intended to include total cost over an example length contract of a certain number of years?
Response: Yes, the total costs should be the total costs over the 5 years contract period.  
3. Is this intended to include all costs of software and estimated costs of professional services?
Response: Yes, the total costs should include software and professional services. We expect professional services costs in the first year but not others. If there are professional services costs in years 2 through 5 then those costs should be detailed in your cost proposal.      
4. Section 5.4 Post Award Procedures. If we are not awarded the contract, we are able to review certain public portions of the winning bid(s), as long as we submit a request in the correct amount of time. (Page 20, Contract Award Post Procedures, Section 5.4(2)).
Can you clarify what this time-frame is?

Response: Section 5.4(1) covers the requirements for debriefing on your failed bid. Section 5.4(1) (d) specifies the following:
(iv) If the request for debriefing is made prior to contract award, the debriefing shall be limited to review of that Bidder’s bid. 
(v) If the debriefing is held after the final award, it may cover the reason for the selection of the winning proposal. 

Section 5.4(2) covers a protest of the Contract Award to the winning bidder. The 3rd paragraph specifies:

The protest letter must be received no later than 10 business days of the award letter being issued.  Protests received by EdgeMarket after this date will be returned to the sender.  Failure to timely file the bid protest shall constitute grounds for EdgeMarket to deny the bid without further consideration. Bidders wishing to review the appropriate public portions of the bid records of the successful bidder or bidders must request, in writing, an opportunity to review these records from the Vice President. Failure to make a timely request to review the winning bidder appropriate public portions of the bid records shall not constitute a basis to extend the protest period.

This means a bid protest must be received by EdgeMarket within 10 business days after the award is issued.
 

5. Section 6.32 Unit Price vs Extension. If there is a discrepancy between the unit price of an item, and the extension, the unit price will govern (Page 22, Bid Prices). 
Can you please clarify this statement?

Response: An example can best explain this section. Let’s say your cost proposal narrative states that implementation services will require 100 widgets at a unit price of $10 and on the cost spreadsheet you miscalculated the total costs for widgets to be $10,000 then EdgeMarket will use the unit price of $10 instead of $1,000. Basically, EdgeMarket will not correct your calculation errors but will use the base unit cost you have indicated.
 
6. Attachment A Requirements. The drop-down menus for Applicant Tracking and Personnel are both not working as expected. They begin in order and then suddenly start over or begin again with a random number. We found this mistake in a few spots. I’m wondering if we should correct the numbering in our response or just leave them as is?

Response: You may correct the numbering when this occurs. We have seen this previously on certain occasions and believe it is a Microsoft formatting issue that has not been resolved.

7. Our team posed a question on an internal call that asked if the forms that require signatures, do they need to be an original “pen to paper” signature, or can they be digital signatures or scans of an original signature? We did not see in the RFP where it specifically states original signature, or not.

Response: There are three places where an original signature is required:
· Bid Guarantee: Since this does not apply to this solicitation it can be ignored
· Exhibit I - Non Collusion Affidavit
· Exhibit K – Bid Proposal Form (please see the attached file)

8.  Will vendors be eliminated if a mutually agreeable RFP terms and conditions cannot be reached?

Response: Contract negotiations will occur after the winning bidder or bidders are selected. If terms cannot be agreed then that offer will go to the vendor with the next highest score.


9. Further to that; Page 12 of Main RFP, Section 6.5 Acceptance of RFP content states: T’s and C’s & proposals incorporated into contract – NO exceptions. On page 33 it states vendors can provide exceptions.  Question: Can you clarify the requirement around adherence to Terms and Conditions?

Response: Page 33 states, “Any exceptions made by any Contractor must be clearly labeled and noted in their Proposal.  Any exceptions made to any material condition or term of the RFP will be cause for the rejection of the proposal.”
What this means is that EdgeMarket may accept an exception that does not materially alter the conditions or terms set forth in this RFP. Any material change will be cause for rejection of that bidder’s submission.

10. Can you clarify how responses will be scored?

Response: Vendors will self-score the requirements. EdgeMarket reviewers will review vendors self-score and may reduce a vendor’s self-score if they deem the vendor’s function or process  does not provide for all of the Members’ needs. EdgeMarket, during its review of a vendor’s submission may contact that vendor for additional details on functionality in question and we would ask vendors to respond with urgency so as not to cause a delay in the review process. 

Vendors are encouraged to describe and provide sufficient details in their bid response so EdgeMarket reviewers can complete their work efficiently.

Vendors with the highest total score (requirements and costs) may be invited to demonstrate their offering using EdgeMarket supplied scripts. Demonstrations will also be scored and the winning bidders will be selected from vendors with the highest total score (requirements (60%), costs (25%) and demonstration (15%)).

11. How many staff members would need access to Financial Management functions such as Financial Reporting, AP, AR, Fixed Assets, Financial Approvals or Workflows, etc.?
Response:  Nine (9).
12. Is this the same number of staff that would need access to management of projects and their related financials?
Response: Yes, the same nine (9). 

13. How many staff members would need the ability to manage grants?

Response: Three (3).
14. How many staff members are actively involved in the planning and budgeting process? 
Response: Five (5).
15. Of the 11,010 students (5,269 FTE), how many are receiving some form of Financial Aid and would need access to a Financial Aid solution?
Response: Annual average is 73%.

16. How many staff members would be involved in procurement functions such as approvals, creating PO’s, contract management, reporting, logistics, supplier invoicing, etc.?
Response: Six (6).

17. How many staff members are managing assets/equipment such as needing to know their location and/or maintenance history?
Response: Three (3).

18. How many staff will need self-service procurement functions? The ability for any staff members to access the university procurement site and make a supply purchase such as a chair, a computer, etc.
Response: Twenty (20).

19. How many staff are managing vendors or suppliers?
Response: Four (4).

20. How many vendors/suppliers would this example school have?
Response: 2,200 max on the books with 60% active at any one period.

21. How many staff would be required to enter expenses? Do any of these expenses have to be tied to projects?
Response: Ten (10). Yes some expenses are tied to projects, however only two (2) would need to enter expenses for projects.
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